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Bef or e: Judge Wei sberger
Statement of the Case

In these consolidated cases, the Operator (Respondent)
sought to challenge the following Citations/Orders issued to it
by the Secretary (Petitioner):

2894708 all eged violation of 30 CF.R 0O 75.316
2894711 alleged failure to tinmely abate Citation
2892710

2894510 all eged violation of 30 CF. R 0O 77.400(c)
22894518 alleged violation of 30 C.F.R 0O 75.1403.
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The Secretary sought civil penalties for alleged violations by
the Operator of the above cited sections except Order No.
2894711.

On February 22, 1988, Respondent filed a Mdtion for a
Summary Deci si on concerni ng Docket No. WEVA 88A6AR (Order No.
2894708). This Modtion was denied by Order dated June 3, 1988. On
March 3, 1988, the Parties were notified that Docket Nos. WEVA
88A88, WEVA 88A6AR, and WEVA 88A7AR woul d be called for hearing
on March 28, 1988, in Falls Church, Virginia. Subsequently, based
upon a request from Counsel for both Parties, these cases were
reschedul ed for March 30, 1988, in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. On
March 28, 1988, in a tel ephone conference call between Counse
for both Parties and the undersigned, Counsel for Petitioner
requested an adjournnment on the ground that one of its w tnesses
had to investigate a fire in a mne on the date the hearing was
schedul ed. The hearing set for March 30, 1988, was subsequently
reschedul ed for June 7, 1988, in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. On My
17, 1988, pursuant to Petitioner's Mtion which was not opposed
by Respondent, Docket No. WEVA 88A104 was consolidated for
hearing with Docket Nos. WEVA 88A6AR, 88A7AR, and 88A88.
Subsequently, pursuant to a request by Counsel for both Parties,

t he above cases schedul ed for hearing on June 7, 1988, in

Pi ttsburgh, Pennsylvania, were reschedul ed and heard on that date
in Morgantown, West Virginia. Honmer W Delovich, Joseph Gary
Pastorial, David C. Wrkman, and Janes A. Tennant testified for
Petitioner. Wesley H Hough, James W Latham 111, Janes David
Gunp, John Metz, G enn Spitznogle, Ira MDaniel, and WIIliam
Robert Laird testified for Respondent.

Petitioner filed its Post Hearing Menorandum and Proposed
Fi ndi ngs of Fact on August 26, 1988, and Respondent filed its
Post Hearing Briefs on August 25, 1988. A Reply Brief was filed
by Respondent on Cctober 4, 1988.

Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Concl usi ons of Law
Order No. 2894708 (WEVA 88AGAR)

On Septenber 3, 1987, MSHA | nspector Homer W Del ovich
i ssued a section 104(d)A2 Order alleging that Respondent had not
conplied with its ventilation plan in the DA3 | ongwal |l section
al l egi ng, as pertinent, " in that a check stopping curtain
was not installed outby the longwall face at the tailgate entry
to deflect or direct the air to the bl eeder system al ong the gob
and to the bl eeder tap ...."

Del ovich testified that, in general, in a [ongwall mining
operation, when retreating, the procedure is to knock out the
st oppi ng between Entries 1 and 2, and then erect a curtain in the
return entry i mediately outby the crosscut in which the stopping
had been knocked down. He testified, in essence, that when he
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i nspected the DA3 | ongwal | section of Respondent's Martinka M ne
No. 1 on Septenber 3, 1987, he wal ked down the tailgate Entry No.
1 outby the face, and at a crosscut approximtely 650 feet from
the face, observed that there was no stopping between Entries 1
and 2. He indicated that no curtain had been installed outby this
crosscut. He considered this to be a violation of the ventilation
pl an and issued Citation/ Order 2894708. In support of its
position, Petitioner submitted a diagramentitled Typica

Longwal | Ventilation, which was indicated to be part of
Respondent's ventilation plan in effect on Septenber 3, 1987,
(Government Exhibit 2). This diagramindicates a curtain was
placed in the No. 1 tailgate entry inmediately outby a crosscut
between Entries No. 1 and 2 without any stopping in the entry.

Del ovi ch i ndi cated that MSHA had not approved any plans with
regard to the ventilation of the working face since the |ast

i nspection in February 1987. Delovich, in essence, testified that
prior to inspection, a review of the ventilation plan reveal ed no
changes to the ventilation of the DA3 working face. Del ovich
further testified that on Septenber 3, 1987, Respondent's
Superint endent, Wesl ey Hough, told himthat Respondent had
submitted a revised plan for the swag area, but that the plan was
not in effect as they were not yet in the swag area.

Joseph Gary Pastorial, a union fire boss enpl oyed by
Respondent, indicated that he perforns weekly exam nations of the
intake and return entries, and also is Chairman of the Union's
Heal th and Safety Comrittee. He indicated that when the operator
proposes revisions to a ventilation plan, the Safety Conmittee is
notified. He indicated that in approximtely 1978, the
ventilation plan was revised to require that a curtain be built
500 feet outby the face, at a point outby a crosscut in which the
st oppi ng had been knocked down. He said that this revision was
made as there was a dust problem He said that this revision was
in effect on Septenber 3, 1987, and he was not aware of any
revision to this plan. He said that a revision to the ventilation
plan in order to cure a geol ogical problemwas subnmitted to him
and was approved, but was limited to the DAL and DA2 Sections.

In contrast, Wesley Hough, who indicated that he is
responsi bl e for Respondent's ventilation plan, testified that he
told Del ovich on Septenber 3, that a revised ventilation plan for
t he DA3 Section had been approved on July 25, 1986. He indicated
that the revision was submtted because there was a geol ogi ca
problem and thus it superseded the typical l[ongwall ventilation
di agram (Governnent Ex. 2) for the DA3 Section, SOCCO Exhibit 1
docurents that, on July 25, 1986, MSHA approved Respondent's
proposed ventilation plan for |ongwall Panel DA3 as well as DA2
and DA4. Hough further indicated that a diagramof its proposed
ventilation plan had been submtted to MSHA for its approval
Thi s di agram shows the ventilation of the | ongwal



~1567

Panel DA3 and does not indicate any curtain in the tailgate Entry
No. 1 outby the crossing between Entries 1 and 2 for which there
is no stopping. (SOCCO Ex. 2) | find that Petitioner's evidence
is insufficient to contradict a plain reading of SOCCO Exhibits 1
and 2, that the Phase Il Ventilation Plan, including the DA3

| ongwal | panel, was approved by MSHA on July 25, 1986. | also
found Hough's testinmony to the sane effect to be persuasive.

The di agram of the plan (SOCCO Ex. 2), does not depict any
curtain outby a crosscut not containing a stopping. |nasmuch as
SOCCO Exhibit 2 is clearly labeled to pertain to the | ongwal
Panel DA3, and had been approved on July 25, 1986, | find that it
had the effect of anmending the typical |ongwall ventilation
(Government Ex. 2). As such, | find that on Septenber 3, 1987,
the approved ventilation plan (SOCCO Ex. 2) did not require the
pl acenent of a curtain immediately outby the face at the tailgate
entry as alleged in the citation in issue. Accordingly, | find
that it had not been established that the ventilation plan was
not being conplied with, and therefore, Citation No. 2894708
shoul d be vacated, and the Petition of Assessnment of Civi
Penal ty (WEVA 88A88) is dismissed.

Citation No. 2894711 (WEVA 88A7AR)

On Septenmber 3, 1987, at approximately 10:30 a.m, Del ovich
i ssued Citation No. 2894710 citing Respondent for having bl ack
coal float dust deposited on the floor of the return entry on the
DA3 | ongwal | section, approximtely 600 feet fromspad No. 34 &
20 to 28 a 20. In essence, Delovich said that after issuing the
Citation, he met with Respondent's enpl oyees Hough, Ji m Lat ham
Pastorial, Dave Wrkman, and Rick Flint and told themto abate
the Citation, that 600 feet needed to be rock dusted by 4:00 p. m
that day. Delovich said that when he returned to the section on
Septenber 4, at 12:30 a.m, he observed that outby the curtain,
that was being erected at the Entry No. 1 to 28 & 20, the floor
was still black. Delovich said that he came upon crosscut 34 &4 40
on the section, and asked two nen who were building a stopping
whet her they were going to rock dust, and they said "no, we were
just told to rock dust up to the stopping"” (WEVA 88A7AR, Tr. 15).
Del ovich said that no request had been made to extend the time to
abate the Citation, and he issued Citation No. 2894711 citing the
Respondent as foll ows:

"Little effort was made to abate the Citation No.
2894710 statenment tinme was 1000 hours on 09A03A87, at
0130 hours on 09A04A87 only 200 feet of the 600 feet of
coal float dust in the tailgate return of the DA3
| ongwal | section was abated. The company rock dusted
200 feet over top the coal float dust outby the
tailgate and then build a permanent stopping closing
off the remaining 400 feet which still existed in the
tailgate return." (sic.)
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James David Gunp, Respondent's Assistant M ne Supervisor
testified, in essence, that after the original citation had been
i ssued, Delovich had indicated that approximtely 600 feet had to
be rock dusted, but that Del ovich asked hi m why Respondent does
not build a stopping in the entry to cut down the dust. Gunp and
John Metz, Respondent's General Supervisor, testified that after
di scussing the conversation that Gunp had with Del ovich with
regard to abatenent, the nmen presently working on the shift were
told to rock dust as far as they could by the end of the shift,
and then build a stopping across the entry.

I find that Del ovich had indicated that in order for the
original citation to be abated, approximtely 600 feet would have
to be rock dusted. The evidence establishes that when observed by
Del ovich at 12:30 a.m on Septenber 4, 1987, the area outby the
st oppi ng that was being erected to spad 28 & 20 had not been rock
dusted. It is clear that abatenent was not satisfied by erecting
a curtain and not rock dusting outby that curtain. In this
connection, | note that upon cross-exani nation, Gunmp agreed that
Del ovi ch had not said to just rock dust until the stopping. Also
Met z acknowl edged, upon cross-exam nation, that in the area outby
t he stopping, coal would have been a hazard if it was not rock
dusted. Metz also indicated that it was intended subsequent to
installing the curtain to rock dust outby that curtain, but that
he was concerned with conplying with the time limt to abate the
citation.

VWhen observed by Del ovich on Septenmber 4, 1987, the
violation previously cited on Septenber 3, had not been totally
abated, in that the area had not been conmpletely rock dusted as
previously directed by Del ovich. Further, | find that Respondent
had not requested an extension to fully rock dust the area.

I ndeed, | note that the workers, observed by Del ovich on
Septenber 4, told himthat they were just told to rock dust up to
the stopping. Based on these circunstances, | can not concl ude
that Del ovich acted unreasonably in not unilaterally extending
the tinme to abate. Accordingly, | conclude that Order No. 2894711
was properly issued in that Citation No. 2894710 had not been
abated within the tine limts set in that Citation, and there was
no unreasonabl eness in not extending the tine to abate.

Order No. 2894510 (WEVA 88A104)

On Septenmber 10, 1987, David C. Wrkman, a M ne Safety and
Heal th Adm ni stration |Inspector, inspected Respondent's
Preparation Plant at the Martinka No. 1 Mne and cited Respondent
for a violation of 30 C.F.R 0O 77.400(c). Workman all eged that
"The guard is
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m ssing off the head drumroller, river side, exposing the head
roller and belt on the ninth floor of the Preparation Plant."
Respondent acknow edges that the guard was not in place, but

mai ntai ns that the violation herein was not the result of its
unwarrantabl e failure, nor was it significant and substanti al

James A. Tennant, Respondent's Preparation Plant Mechani c,
testified that approximately 1 to 2 weeks prior to the date the
citation herein was issued on Septenber 10, 1987, he was
conpleting work on the belt brake or back stop which had been
started the shift before. Tennant indicated, in essence, that the
guard that had been taken off to performthe repairs was |eaning
agai nst a tank. He was asked whether the guard was in plain sight
or hidden behind the tank and answered that it was out in front
bet ween the tank and belt drum (WEVA 88A104, Tr. Vol I, P. 41).
According to Tennant, before he had an opportunity to replace the
guard, his foreman, Ira MDaniel, ordered himto go to another
wor k assi gnment. Tennant did not indicate to his supervisor that
t he guard had not yet been replaced nor did he later on check to
see if it had been replaced. Tennant further testified that a day
or two before the citation was issued, he was in the area and saw
the guard still on the floor, but did not replace it. Nor did he
tell his supervisor that it still had not been replaced. David C
Wor kman, MSHA | nvestigator, entered Respondent's Preparation
Pl ant on Septenber 10, 1987, in response to a section 103(g) (i)
conpl aint that various enpl oyees of Respondent had nentioned to
Respondent's nanagers and supervi sors that the guard in question
had not been replaced. However, there is no docunmentary evi dence
or testinmony which would indicate that any of Respondent's
supervi sors or managers knew that the guard in question was not
in place. According to Tennant, the belt had to be shut down in
order to replace the guard, and that shutting down the belt |ine
was the responsibility of the supervisor. denn Spitznogle,
Respondent's day shift foreman, and Ira MDaniel, Respondent's
foreman, both testified that they did not know that the guard in
guestion was not in place.

VWhen Tennant was asked whether it was obvious that the guard
was mi ssing, he indicated that if one wal ked through the area and
saw the guard on the ground "... you' d wonder where it went"
(WEVA 88A104, Tr. Vol |, P. 46). However, Workman indicated that
it was not obvious to himthat the guard bel onged where it did on
the back stop. Although Spitznogle indicated on cross-exani nation
that in the 2 years prior to July 1988, possibly he was on the
9th floor of the plant hundreds of tinmes, he stated that he is
not there daily, and specifically did not notice that the guard
was missing fromthe cited area. It was MDaniel's testinmony, in
essence, that he never saw the guard up against the tank and did
not know it belonged at the |location fromwhere it was m ssing.
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concl ude that neither Spitznogle nor MDaniel actually knew that
the guard in question was not in place. However, based upon the
testinony of Tennant, and taking into account the size of the
guard (estimted by Tennant to be 2 A2 1/2p x 3p ), | find
that they each should have observed the guard in the area and
shoul d have realized that it was not in its proper place. Clearly
Tennant was renmiss in not reporting to his supervisor the fact
that the guard had not been replaced, especially after he saw it
again a day to two before the citation was issued, and
approximately a week after he performed work on the belt. | find
under the circunstances of this case, taking into account all the
above, that Respondent's mal f easance herein anopunted to an
aggravat ed conduct. As such, | conclude that the violation
resulted from Respondent’'s unwarranted failure. (See Enmeory

M ning Corp., 9 FMSHRC 1997 (Dec 1987)).

In essence, it was Workman's testinmony that maintenance
persons or others comng into the area could trip or fall with
the risk of their hand or other linmb being inserted in the area,
unprotected by the guard, causing the whole body to be dragged in
or causing the person to suffer bruises and the |ost of a finger
or linmb. The unguarded area was | ocated on a platform
approximately 2 1/2 feet fromthe edge of the platform
Spitznogle admtted that one could get one's foot caught and trip
on the edge of the 1 foot high platform Also the platformis
hosed daily, and the water is not cleared up as it is allowed to
drain and evaporate. Spitznogle also indicated that oil has
| eaked fromthe gear case in the past. However, according to
Workman there was neither an accunul ation of oil or grease, nor
were there stumbling hazards in the i medi ate area. Mreover, it
has not been established that in the normal operations persons
would climb up the platform The only person regularly working on
the 9th floor (the level where the cited condition is found) is a
pl ant attendant. The evidence indicates nerely that his job is to
check the equi pment, but there is no evidence establishing that
in the normal course of his duties he would be in close proxinty
to the unguarded area. Nor has it been established that one
hosing the platformwould stand or walk on the platform |
further find the following facts, as set forth in Respondent's
Brief at pages 11A12: (1) people fire boss the area and gas
checks are needed to be taken somewhere on the 9th floor, but not
necessarily at the location specified in the Order; (2) once
every nmonth or two the grease canister needs to be refilled and
occasionally the oil needs to be changed in a gear box, but both
the grease canister and the gear box are on the opposite side of
the head roller fromthe location of the mssing guard; (3) light
bul bs mi ght need to be changed, but these are not done in the
i mediate vicinity of the [ocation in which the guard was
m ssi ng.
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Accordingly, | conclude that although there was a possibility of
the violation herein of an unguarded area contributing to the
hazard of some one falling or stunbling and being injured, |
conclude that there was not a reasonable |ikelihood that the
hazard contributed to would result in an injury, as it has not
been established that it was reasonably likely for a hazard to
occur. As such, the violation herein is not significant and
substantial. (c.f. Mathies Coal Conpany 6 FMSHRC 1 (January
1984) .

I find that Respondent herein was negligent to a high degree
in that Tennant knew of the m ssing guard and did not comunicate
this to his supervisor, and that the latter should have known the
guard was nmissing. Also | find that the gravity herein was
noderately serious (although not significant and substantial), as
in the event of a person inadvertently comng in contact with the
unguarded portion of the belt, a reasonably serious injury could
have resulted. Taking into account the remaining factors of
section 110(i) of the Act, as stipulated to by the Parties, |
conclude that a penalty herein of $200 is appropriate.

Order No. 289518 (WEVA 88A104)

On Septenmber 7, 1987, Inspector David Wrkman was told by
M ner's Representative Pat Grines of the existence of a broken
switch on the 12Aleft track haul age of the North Mins. Upon
arriving at the 12Al eft track, |nspector Workman noted that the
barrel to the switch was disconnected, the bottom ear of the
female joint C-bolt was broken, and the connecting bolt was |ying
in the adjacent dirt. Workman opined, in essence, that in |ight
of the area being highly traveled by personnel carriers,
| oconptives, and jitneys, it was very likely that with the rai
not bei ng secured, vibrations could dislodge the alignnment
causing a derail nment.

Workman testified that the m ners' representative told him
that he had reported this condition to three individuals who are
a part of mne managenment. Workman said that he talked to two of
these three individuals.

Wl liam Laird, Respondent's foreman on the m dnight shift,
testified that on October 5, 1987, 2 days before the date of the
i ssuance of the Order, he signed a preshift report stating that
the switch throw was broken and then corrected by installing the
bolt in the switch barrel

Laird said that on October 5, 1987, he also reported to the
di spatcher the need for new ears or possibly a new barrel, and
that on October 6, 1987, he repaired the switch. At the time he
made the repairs, he checked at least five time to see if the
switch woul d operate correctly and determ ned that it did.
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Laird testified that he had repaired the broken switch by placing
the bolt back through the barrel and that he did not observe a
nut to be placed on the bottomof this bolt. It was his opinion
that nost of the track haul age switches do not have nuts that go
wi th such bolts, but he conceded that nobst C-bolts do not have a
broken C pi ece.

On Cctober 7, 1987, Wrknman i ssued Order No. 2894518 which
provi des that "The 12Aleft track haul age switch in North Mains
was found to be disconnected fromthe barrel, one ear was broken
off the barrel, and the bolt and nut was found | ayi ng down under
the throw part of the switch ...."

This Order essentially was issued based on Saf eguard 814335
dated February 7, 1979, which states as follow

The track haul age set out switch for the
superintendent's jitney is not properly aligned,
causi ng track haul age equi prent passing over it to whip
si deways. This is a notice to provi de safeguards
requiring that all track haul age at this mne shall be
properly maintai ned and al i gned.

Respondent has chall enged the validity of the instant
saf eguard upon which the Citation in question was issued.
Respondent argues that the safeguard was inproperly issued as its
requi renents shoul d have been the subject of rule making.
Subsequent to the hearing, the Parties, in a tel ephone conference
call, initiated by the undersigned, on Septenber 2, 1988, were
allowed to file Supplenental Briefs on the applicability to the
i ssues herein, of the recent Comm ssion decision in Secretary v.
Sout hern Chio Coal Co, 10 FMSHRC 963, (August 1988). Briefs were
filed by the Parties. Respondent filed a Reply Brief; none was
filed by Petitioner

In essence, it is Petitioner's position that the |ack of
mai nt enance of the equiprment in question created a hazard that
was not covered by mandatory standards, but which is addressed by
t he safeguard herein. In contrast, Respondent maintains that the
saf eguard requiring all track haul age to be properly maintained
is of general applicability, and as such, is invalid as it was
not pronul gated pursuant to section 101(a) of the Act.

The Conmission in Secretary v. Southern Chio Coal Co.,
supra, at 967, noted that the Court of Appeals of the District of
Columbia Circuit in Zeiglar Coal Co. v. Kl eppe, 536 F2d 389
(D.C.Cir.1976) "has recogni zed that proof that ventilation
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requi rements are generally applicable, rather than mne-specific,
may provide the basis for a defense with respect to all eged

viol ati ons of mandatory ventilation plans.” The Conm ssion in
Sout hern Chio, supra at 967 further analyzed Zeigler as follows:

[T] he court considered the relationship of a
mne's ventilation plan required under section 303(0)
of the Act, 30 U.S.C. O 863(0), to nandatory health and
safety standards pronul gated by the Secretary. The
court explained that the provisions of such a plan
cannot "be used to inpose general requirenents of a
variety well-suited to all or nearly all coal m nes"
but that as long as the provisions "are limted to
condi tions and requirenents nmade necessary by peculiar
ci rcunstances of individual mnes, they will not
i nfringe on subject matter which could have been
readily dealt with in mandatory standards of universa
application." 536 F.2d at 407; See al so Carbon County
Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1123, 1127 (May 1984) (Carbon County
l); Carbon County Coal Co., 7 FMSHRC 1367, 1370A72
(Sept ember 1985) (Carbon County I1).

I n Sout hern Ohio, supra, the Comr ssion did not resolve the
qguestion of whether a defense to a safeguard may be based on its
bei ng generally applicable, as it found that there was no
evi dence of whether the safeguard was general or mine-specific.
In contrast, in the case at bar, | find the follow ng evidence in
the record, as summari zed by Respondent in its Brief at page 3:
"The inspector estimated that he had been in over 100 underground
m nes and that approximately 80% have tracks and track haul age
switches. Further, the inspector testified that the problemwth
track haul age switches not being maintained did not pose a
greater hazard or safety problemin the Martinka Mne that in
ot her mnes that have track haul age switches, that the associated
hazards woul d be the sane at other mines as in the Martinka M ne,
and that there was no reason why the contents of the Safeguard
woul d be nmore applicable to the Martinka No. 1 Mne than to other
m ne" (sic). In contrast, Petitioner did not offer any proof with
regard to the circunmstances under which the safeguard was issued,
the specific need for the safeguard at the subject mne, or
whet her sim | ar safeguards had been issued for other mnes.

I find that generally, in allocating the burden of proof,
one factor taken into account is which Party has the best
knowl edge of the particular disputed facts (Lindahl v. Ofice of
Per sonnel Managenent 776 F2d 276 (Fed.Cir.1985). The burden is
not placed upon a Party to establish facts particularly within
t he know edge of its adversary. In this connection, it appears
t hat Respondent woul d have particul ar know edge as to the
ci rcunst ances under which the safeguard was i ssued, and the
exi stence
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or need of similar safeguards at other m nes (See Southern Ohio,
supra, at 967A968. In addition, it has been held that generally
MSHA has the burden of putting forth a prima facie case of a
violation (MIller Mning Co, Inc. v. Federal Mne Safety and
Heal t h Revi ew Conmi ssion 713 F2d 487 (9th Cir1983) See also Ad
Ben Coal Corp. v. IBMA 523 F2d 25, 39 (7th Cir.1975)). As such,
it had the burden of establishing all elenments of the citation
including the validity of the underlying safeguard.

I thus conclude, based on all the above, that Petitioner has
failed to establish that the safeguard in issue was mine-specific
to the subject mne. As such, based on the rationale of Zieglar,
supra, that | find applies with equal force to the case at bar, |
concl ude that because it has not been established that the
saf equard was mine-specific, it therefore is invalid as it was
not pronul gated pursuant to the rule making procedures of section
101 of the Act. Accordingly, | find that the Order herein, should
be di smi ssed inasnuch as it was predicated upon an invalid
saf eguard.

ORDER
It is ORDERED that:

1. The Notice of Contest, Docket No. WEVA 88A6AR is
SUSTAI NED.

2. Citation No. 2894708 be VACATED.
3. Docket No. WEVA 88A88 be DI SM SSED.
4, Order No. 2894710 was properly issued.

5. Notice of Contest, Docket No. WEVA 88A7AR be
DI SM SSED.

6. Order No. 2894510 be AMENDED to reflect the fact
that is is not significant and substantial.

7. Order No. 289518 be VACATED.
8. Respondent shall pay, within 30 days of this

Deci sion, the sum of $200 as a Civil Penalty for the
vi ol ati on found herein.

Avram Wei sber ger
Adm ni strative Law Judge



